
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 

BOARD OF ADJUSTMENTS 
AGENDA 

 
 
 
 
 

JANUARY 10, 2013 
 

 



Currituck County 
Board of Adjustment Agenda 

Historic Currituck County Courthouse 

 
 

Date: January 10, 2013 
Time: 7:30 P.M. 

 
 
 

7:30 p.m.  Call to Order 
 
Item 1  Roll Call 
 
Item 2  Election of Officers 

• Chairman 

• Vice Chairman 
 

Item 3   Approval of November 8, 2012 minutes 
 
Item 4 BOA 13-1 NTELOS: Conditional use permit to allow a telecommunications 

tower more than 50 feet located at 702 Northwest Backwoods Road, Tax 
Map 3, Parcel 1A, Moyock Township. 

 
Item 5 BOA 13-2 WORLD MOTORS LLC: Conditional use permit to allow 

automobile sales & rental located at 1383 Caratoke Hwy, Tax Map 23, 
Parcel 10, Moyock Township. 

 
Item 6 BOA 13-3 RICHARD COULTIER:  Variance request for a reduction to the 

minimum lot size, the minimum lot width, and the right-of-way requirements. 
The property is lot 8 in the Lewark-Bender Subdivision, Tax Map 101B, 
Parcel 8, Fruitville Outer Banks Township. 

 
Item 7  Old Business 
 
Item 8  Adjournment 

 

  

 



  11/8/2012 BOA Minutes: Page 1 

*Minutes are not official until approved by the board. 

CURRITUCK COUNTY 
BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT REGULAR MEETING 

November 8, 2012 
 

 
 

REGULAR MEETING  

The Currituck County Board of Adjustment met on November 8, 2012 at 7:30 p.m. in the 
Historic Currituck County Courthouse.  The following members were present: Bryan 
Bass, David Palmer, Christian Conner, Cameron Tabor, and Michael Painter.  The 
following member was absent: Theresa Dozier and Vivian Simpson. Brad Schuler, 
Planner; Stacey Smith, Code Enforcement Officer; and Ike McRee, Board of Adjustment 
Attorney; were also present.   
 
Mr. Bass called the meeting to order and announced a quorum have been met with 
three regular members and two alternate members.   
 
APPROVAL OF JULY 12, 2012, 2012 MINUTES  

 

Mr. David Palmer motioned to approve the July 12, 2012 minutes with no changes.  Mr. 
Christian Connor seconded the motion and the motion passed unanimously. 
 

CONSIDERATION AND ACTION on BOA 09-15 THE LAMPE COMPANY INC: 
Extension of the conditional use permit to allow a mini-warehouse and outdoor storage 
located at 8418 Caratoke Hwy in Powells Point, 0124-000-068G-0000, Poplar Branch 
Township.   

Mr. Terry  Wethington, Mr. Derek Dail, Mrs. Stacey Smith and Mr. Brad Schuler 
appeared before the board and were sworn in. 
 

Mr. Schuler presented the following case to the Board:  
 
 
To:   Board of Adjustment 
 
From: Brad Schuler, Planner I 
  
Date: November 1, 2012 
 
Subject: The Lampe Company CUP Extension 
 
 
On September 10, 2009, the Board of Adjustment voted to approve BOA 09-15, a Conditional 
Use Permit application for mini-warehousing and outdoor storage at 8418 Caratoke Highway.  
The CUP approval was due to expire on September 10, 2011, however, the North Carolina 
General Assembly passed a law that suspended the vesting period for development approvals 



  11/8/2012 BOA Minutes: Page 2 

*Minutes are not official until approved by the board. 

that were valid at any time during January 1, 2008 through December 31, 2010.  With the law 
in effect the CUP expiration date is January 1, 2013.   
 
On August 24, 2012 the applicant, The Lampe Company, submitted a request for a two year 
extension of the permit (see attached).   
 
In accordance with the UDO Chapter 11 Section 11.10.2, the Board of Adjustment may grant an 
extension of the CUP one time for a period of two years, if they conclude that: 
 

1. The permit has not yet expired. 
a. The permit has not yet expired and will expire January 1, 2013. 
 

2. The permit recipient has proceeded with due diligence and in good faith; and, 
a. The decline in the economy has delayed the development of the property.   
 

3. Conditions have not changed so substantially as to warrant a new application.  
Successive extensions shall not be granted.  All such extensions may be granted 
without resort to the formal processes and fees required for a new permit.   

There are no changes proposed in the extension request.   
 
 
DISCUSSION 

 
David Palmer asked if the applicant had 5 percent of cost of the permit completed.   
 
Brad Schuler stated they have not submitted any evidence that they have met the 5 
percent to be vested for their permit. 
 
Terry Wethington stated he thought he had until December 31st to have 5 percent done 
and have recently applied for permits and in hopes to start by October 1. We were 
required to go back through TRC again, which has delayed applying for the building 
permits. 
 
Brad Schuler stated that they were required to go back to TRC to get the final approval, 
which was a requirement of their permit. 
 
Terry Wethington just received that approved plan tonight and are ready to start 
construction and is prepared to spend the 5 % by the December 31st deadline. He does 
not want to push the local contractors to get it done as there are two major holidays and 
when rushed contractors make mistakes. However, he is ready to start with the full 
project. 
 
David Palmer asked if they were going forward with the full project. 
 
Terry Wethington stated they were as they have a lot of money invested in this project 
and they are committed to this project.  We do not develop to sell; we develop to 
manage it ourselves, as that is our business 



  11/8/2012 BOA Minutes: Page 3 

*Minutes are not official until approved by the board. 

 
Derek Dail with Quible stated that he is here to answer any questions the board may 
have about the project. 
 
 
 
ACTION 
 

David Palmer motioned to extend the permit. Christian Conner 2nd that motion. Motion 
carried unanimously. 
 
 

Item 4:  

BOA 12-15 CO PARTNERS OF JARVISBURG: Appeal of administrator’s decision that 
signage contains off-premise advertising and is in violation of Section 7.4 of the Unified 
Development Ordinance. Located at 5243 Caratoke Hwy, Parcel 0083-000-006A-0000, 
Poplar Branch Township. 

Mr. Thomas Wright, Mr. Jerry Wright and Mr. Dennis Anderson appeared before the 
board and were sworn in. 
 
Mrs. Smith presented the following case to the board:  
 

 

To:  Board of Adjustment 
 
From: Planning Staff 
 
Date: October 31, 2012 
 
Re:  BOA 12-15 CO Partners of Jarvisburg 
 
 
 
Jerry Wright is appealing the administrator’s decision regarding signs located at The Muddy 
Motorsports Park, 5243 Caratoke Hwy, Poplar Branch.  
 
On March 17, 2011 the County issued building permits for two 240 square foot on-premise signs 
in accordance with the standards of the Unified Development Ordinance (UDO). At the time, the 
UDO allowed for two on premise signs for the property with a maximum area of 250 square feet 
each. The building permit application did not illustrate any off premise advertisements.  
 
An on site inspection found the two signs to be advertising businesses not located on the premises 
on which the signs are located. The UDO states: 
 
“Section 7.4 Prohibited Signs 
The following signs are expressly prohibited: 



  11/8/2012 BOA Minutes: Page 4 

*Minutes are not official until approved by the board. 

A. Off-premise advertising signs (billboards), including digital billboards.” 
 
Section 17.2 Definitions of the UDO states:  
“Sign, On Premise 
Any sign that directs one’s attention to a service, commodity, entertainment, or business offered on 
the premise where the sign is located.” 
 
The County submits the following attachments:  
 

o Attachment 1:  Appeal application submitted September 17, 2012 by Jerry Wright, 
property owner. 

o Attachment 2:  Notice of violation sent September 4, 2012 from Stacey Smith, Code 
Enforcement Officer. 

o Attachment 3: Photos taken August 30, 2012 of the two signs found in violation. 
o Attachment 4:  Building Permit #201100342 issued on March 17, 2011 for 2            

freestanding on premise signs 
o Attachment 5:  Copy of Sections 7.4 & 17.2  

 
DISCUSSION 

 
 
David Palmer made mention of the note on permit application “for illustration purposes 
only” on the construction drawings 
 
Jerry Wright provided an overview of the history of the Mud Park. He felt the notice of 
violation should have gone to the Muddy Motor Sports and not CO Partners of 
Jarvisburg. He also wanted to know which commissioner this complaint came from.  
 
Ike McRee stated that there is written documentation in the file and the files are public 
record.  
 
Stacey Smith stated that the complaint was giving to the commissioners during the 
Terry Miles sign request along with three others during a BOC meeting. 
 
Jerry Wright stated that the staff had determined the signs were off-premise. Ask staff to 
read signs. 
 
Stacey Smith reads the whole signs.  
 
Jerry Wright stated that the signs do not state location of Cam2. They are an activity of 
the park and Hall Automotive provides cash incentives. No place on the sign does it 
direct you to different locations. UDO never envisioned with these type of uses.   
 
Bryan Bass summarizes: 1. violation should not have be cited to Co Partnership but to 
Muddy Motor Sports.  2. Signs are sponsors of the event.  
 



  11/8/2012 BOA Minutes: Page 5 

*Minutes are not official until approved by the board. 

Jerry Wright stated that outdoor advertising is the most effective advertising in the 
County. Biggest problem is most people cannot afford them.  
 
Cameron Tabor asked if they have been receiving any fines.  
 
Jerry Wright stated no as we appealed.  If ruled against Dennis will have to take down 
sign soon or face fines of up to $500 a day.  
 
Mike Painter asked whom the permit was issued to. 
 
Stacey Smith stated that the building permit was issued to Dennis Anderson Muddy 
Motor Sports Park. 
 
Stacey Smith quoted the section of the UDO where it speaks of persons liable for the 
violation. We always send violations to property owner.  
 
Bryan Bass does the sign change if sponsor changes? 
 
Dennis Anderson sign stays the same.  He gave an overview of how the park is run.  
 
Bryan Bass asked who paid for the skins for the sign. 
 
Dennis Anderson stated that Hall Automotive and Cam2 paid for the signs and gives me 
products. He paid to have the signs built.  
 
Chris Conner asked how long up have the signs been up.  
 
Dennis Anderson stated that the signs have been up since about April of this year. 
 
Christian Connor asked what was up before these signs.  
 
Dennis Anderson stated no signs other then the little sign with just the name on it. 
 
David Palmer asked Mr. Anderson is it correct that Cam2 gives you product and you 
give to participants. 
 
Dennis Anderson answered yes they do.  
 
David Palmer stated he thinks that in this case it is in fact part of operation. 
 
Bryan Bass asked what relation Hall has in the operation. 
 
Dennis Anderson stated that Hall Automotive sponsors a truck that he drives and pays 
the purse for the winners. 
 
David Palmer asked if the sponsoring is on all the time. 



  11/8/2012 BOA Minutes: Page 6 

*Minutes are not official until approved by the board. 

 
Dennis Anderson answered, yes they do. 
 
David Palmer asked Ike McRee for an interpretation. 
 
Ike McRee advised the board to refer to the UDO 
 
Cameron Tabor stated that the UDO does not say you have to sell it 
 
ACTION 

 
David Palmer motioned to overturn the administrator’s decision as the signs stated 
sponsorship not location.  Michael Painter 2nd the motion. Motion carried unanimously. 
 
ADJOURNMENT 

 
There being no further business to discuss Mr. Cameron Tabor motioned for 
adjournment.  Mr. Christian Conner seconded the motion and the motion passed 
unanimously.  The meeting adjourned at 8:50 p.m. 
 
Respectfully Submitted, 
 

Stacey Smith  
Code Enforcement Officer 
 



 

BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT CASE ANALYSIS 
 

Meeting Date:  January 10, 2013 
Case Number:  BOA 13-01 
Applicant:  Richmond 20MHz, LLC. (dba Ntelos) 
Property Owner: Vernon P. Garrett, III 
PIN: 0003-000-001A-0000 
Address:  702 Northwest Backwoods Road (proposed) 
Zoning District:  Agricultural (A) 
Township:  Moyock 
 
Request 
Conditional use permit to allow a 199 foot telecommunications tower in the Agricultural (A) zoning 
district, pursuant to the Table of Permissible Uses of the Currituck County Unified Development 
Ordinance.   
 
*Application reviewed under the Unified Development Ordinance adopted and effective on 
September 4, 2007 (1989 UDO), and amended through the date of application, November 21, 
2012. 
 
Narrative 
 

1. The 199 foot monopole tower will be within a 75’ x 75’ lease area approximately 940 
feet from the front property line.  

 
2. The tower and supporting ground equipment will be surrounded by an eight foot security 

fence within the leased area.  
 
3. The tower will be accessed by a 12’ gravel road.  
 
4. The tower itself will provide four antenna array and co-location opportunities.  
 

Conditional Use Permit Criteria and Staff Findings 
 
The Board must find that the applicant meets all criteria in order for a conditional use permit to 
be approved.  Following is the staff suggested findings for each criterion (as is required by the 
UDO). 
 
In granting a conditional use permit, the Board of Adjustment may attach to the permit such 
reasonable requirements in addition to those specified in this ordinance as this will ensure that the 
development in its proposed location meets the following: 
 
(a) The application is complete. 

1. The application is complete. 
 
(b) The proposed use is among those listed in the Table of Permissible Uses as a 

conditional use indicated with a “C.” 
1. The proposed use is among those listed in the Table of Permissible Uses as a 

conditional use indicated with a “C.” 
BOA 13-01 Ntelos CUP
Case Analysis
1 of 23



 

(c) The conditions proposed meet or exceed the minimum requirements of this ordinance. 
1.  The conditions proposed meet or exceed the minimum requirements of this ordinance.  

 
(d) The conditional use will not endanger the public health or safety. 

1.  The proposed use should have no impact on public heath or safety. 
 
(e) The conditional use will not injure the value of adjoining or abutting property and will 

be in harmony with the area in which it is located. 
1. The proposed location of the tower is surrounded by wooded area and farmland.  The 

use will not injure the value of adjoining or abutting property and will be in harmony 
with the area in which it is located.  

 
2. The surrounding land uses include: 

a. North: Undeveloped Zoning District: A 
b. South: Undeveloped Zoning District: A 
c.  East:  Undeveloped Zoning District: A 
d.  West:  Undeveloped Zoning District: A 
 

(f) The conditional use will be in conformity with the Land Use Plan and other officially 
adopted plans. 

 
1. The conditional use is in conformity with the Land Use Plan and other officially 

adopted plans.  
 

2. The 2006 Land Use Plan classifies this property as Rural within the Moyock subarea.  
The Rural classification emphasizes low-density development and preservation of 
agricultural areas.  

 
(g) The conditional use will not exceed the county’s ability to provide adequate public 

facilities. 
1.  The proposed use will not exceed the county's ability to provide adequate public 

facilities. 
 
 

TRC/Staff Recommendation:  
The Technical Review Committee and staff recommend approval of this request subject to the 
findings of fact as presented above and the following conditions: 
 

1. A 10 foot buffer of the existing vegetation shall be preserved around the perimeter 
of the facility or adequate landscaping be installed to screen the facility from 
surrounding properties; provided however, that vegetation that causes interference 
with the antennas or inhibits access to the facility may be trimmed or removed.  

2. Prior to issuance of building permit, the applicable NCDENR stormwater permit shall 
be submitted to the Planning and Community Development Department.  

 
 

BOA 13-01 Ntelos CUP
Case Analysis
2 of 23



 

 
 

 

BOA 13-01 Ntelos CUP
Case Analysis
3 of 23



BOA 13-01 Ntelos CUP
Application
4 of 23



BOA 13-01 Ntelos CUP
Application
5 of 23



BOA 13-01 Ntelos CUP
Application
6 of 23



BOA 13-01 Ntelos CUP
Application
7 of 23



BOA 13-01 Ntelos CUP
Application
8 of 23



BOA 13-01 Ntelos CUP
Application
9 of 23



BOA 13-01 Ntelos CUP
Application
10 of 23



BOA 13-01 Ntelos CUP
Application
11 of 23





BOA 13-01 Ntelos CUP
Application
13 of 23



BOA 13-01 Ntelos CUP
Application
14 of 23



BOA 13-01 Ntelos CUP
Plan
15 of 23



BOA 13-01 Ntelos CUP
Plan
16 of 23



BOA 13-01 Ntelos CUP
Plan
17 of 23



BOA 13-01 Ntelos CUP
Plan
18 of 23



BOA 13-01 Ntelos CUP
Plan
19 of 23



BOA 13-01 Ntelos CUP
Plan
20 of 23



BOA 13-01 Ntelos CUP
Plan
21 of 23



BOA 13-01 Ntelos CUP
Plan
22 of 23



BOA 13-01 Ntelos CUP
Plan
23 of 23



BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT CASE ANALYSIS 
 

Meeting Date:  January 10, 2013 
Case Number:  BOA 13-02 
Applicant:  World Motors, LLC 
Property Owner: Judsky, Inc.  
PIN: 0023-000-0010-0000 
Address:  1383 Caratoke Highway 
Zoning District:  General Business (GB) 
Township:  Moyock 
 
Request 
Conditional use permit to allow a auto sales and rental in the General Business (GB) zoning 
district, pursuant to the Table of Permissible Uses of the Currituck County Unified Development 
Ordinance.   
 
*Application reviewed under the Unified Development Ordinance adopted and effective on 
September 4, 2007 (1989 UDO), and amended through the date of application, November 20, 
2012. 
 
Narrative 
 

1. The operation will use an existing building on the property.  Additional asphalt will be 
added to the vehicular area in compliance with the standards of the UDO.  

 
2. The proposed hours of operation are 9am to 7pm, Monday to Saturday.  Sundays would 

be by appointment only.  
 

Conditional Use Permit Criteria and Staff Findings 
 
The Board must find that the applicant meets all criteria in order for a conditional use permit to 
be approved.  Following is the staff suggested findings for each criterion (as is required by the 
UDO). 
 
In granting a conditional use permit, the Board of Adjustment may attach to the permit such 
reasonable requirements in addition to those specified in this ordinance as this will ensure that the 
development in its proposed location meets the following: 
 
(a) The application is complete. 

1. The application is complete. 
 
(b) The proposed use is among those listed in the Table of Permissible Uses as a 

conditional use indicated with a “C.” 
1. The proposed use is among those listed in the Table of Permissible Uses as a 

conditional use indicated with a “C.” 
 
(c) The conditions proposed meet or exceed the minimum requirements of this ordinance. 

1.  The conditions proposed meet or exceed the minimum requirements of this ordinance.  
 

BOA 13-02 World Motors CUP
Case Analysis
1 of 12



(d) The conditional use will not endanger the public health or safety. 
1.  The proposed use should have no impact on public heath or safety. 

 
(e) The conditional use will not injure the value of adjoining or abutting property and will 

be in harmony with the area in which it is located. 
1. The proposed location is within a commercial and industrial zoned area.  The use will 

not injure the value of adjoining or abutting property and will be in harmony with the 
area in which it is located.  

 
2. The surrounding land uses include: 

a. North: Office Building Zoning District: GB 
b. South: Undeveloped Zoning District: HM 
c.  East:  Undeveloped Zoning District: HM 
d.  West:  Undeveloped 
   Rail Road R/W Zoning District: GB/HM 
 

(f) The conditional use will be in conformity with the Land Use Plan and other officially 
adopted plans. 

 
1. The conditional use is in conformity with the Land Use Plan and other officially 

adopted plans.  
 

2. The 2006 Land Use Plan classifies this property as Rural within the Moyock subarea.  
The Rural classification emphasizes low-density development and preservation of 
agricultural areas.  Land Use Plan policies that are relevant to this use: 

 
POLICY TR6:  HIGHWAY 158/168 shall receive special attention concerning the 
proper development of land and properties adjoining and/or accessing this critical 
area.  

 
POLICY CD7: Attractive, environmentally beneficial LANDSCAPING shall be 
provided by new commercial or office developments, and in the rehabilitation and 
upgrading of existing developments. Appropriate BUFFERING or other effective 
DESIGN FEATURES may be employed to allow less intensive forms of commercial 
and office development to adjoin existing or planned residential uses. 
 
POLICY CA1: The important economic, tourism, and community image benefits of 
attractive, functional MAJOR HIGHWAY CORRIDORS through Currituck County 
shall be recognized. Such highway corridors, beginning with US 158 and NC 168, 
shall receive priority attention for improved appearance and development 
standards, including driveway access, landscaping, buffering, signage, lighting 
and tree preservation. 
 
POLICY ML4: Currituck County recognizes that the appearance and traffic moving 
function of the NC 168/ US 158 CORRIDOR is of exceptional importance to both 
the near term quality of life and long-term economic prospects for residents and 
property owners in the Mainland Area. The Transportation and Community 
Appearance policy sections of this plan shall be implemented to give priority to 
this issue. 

BOA 13-02 World Motors CUP
Case Analysis
2 of 12



(g) The conditional use will not exceed the county’s ability to provide adequate public 
facilities. 
1.  The proposed use will not exceed the county's ability to provide adequate public 

facilities. 
 
 

TRC/Staff Recommendation:  
The Technical Review Committee and staff recommend approval of this request subject to the 
findings of fact as presented above. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

BOA 13-02 World Motors CUP
Case Analysis
3 of 12



 
 

 

BOA 13-02 World Motors CUP
Application
4 of 12



BOA 13-02 World Motors CUP
Application
5 of 12



BOA 13-02 World Motors CUP
Application
6 of 12



BOA 13-02 World Motors CUP
Application
7 of 12



BOA 13-02 World Motors CUP
Application
8 of 12



BOA 13-02 World Motors CUP
Application
9 of 12



BOA 13-02 World Motors CUP
Application
10 of 12



BOA 13-02 World Motors CUP
Application
11 of 12



BOA 13-02 World Motors CUP
Site Plan
12 of 12



 

 
         

      Currituck County 
Planning and Community Development Department 

Planning and Zoning Division 
153 Courthouse Road, Suite 110 
Currituck, North Carolina  27929 

252-232-3055     FAX 252-232-3026 
 
 

To:   Board of Adjustment  
 
From: Planning Staff 
  
Date: January 2, 2012 
 
Subject: PB 13-03 Coulter - Variance  
 
 
Richard Coulter is requesting a variance from Sections 3.4.4.F and 10.3.3.B.6 of the new Unified 
Development Ordinance (UDO) for parcel 101B-000-0008-0000 in order to establish it as a 
buildable lot.  
 
Background 
Local governments regulate land use through zoning and subdivision ordinances.  Zoning 
ordinances establish zoning districts with standards such as permitted uses, minimum lot size, and 
setbacks, etc.  Subdivision ordinances establish standards all subdivisions (the division of a parcel 
into two or more lots) must meet including open space and street requirements.  Since 1989, 
Currituck County has combined its zoning and subdivision ordinances into one document: the 
Unified Development Ordinance.  
 
All new subdivisions proposed in the county must be reviewed by staff for compliance with the 
standards of the UDO prior to being approved.  Lots that have been reviewed and approved 
through the subdivision process established in the UDO are called a “lot of record”.  The UDO 
defines “lot of record” as the following: 
 

“EXISTING LOT (LOT OF RECORD) 
A lot which is a part of an approved subdivision, a plat of which has been recorded in the 
Office of the Register of Deeds of Currituck County, or a lot described by metes and bounds, 
the description of which has been so recorded and which at the time of recordation and the time 
it was originally subdivided met all applicable subdivision and zoning regulations then in effect. 
In addition, this definition shall include lots for which a plat and/or deed is recorded in the 
Office of the Register of Deeds and the lot was created prior to August 2, 1965; a lot upon 
which an existing structure is located provided a valid building permit was obtained for the 
construction; or, a lot which at the time of creation met all subdivision and zoning requirements 
provided a plat is approved by the administrator and recorded with the Register of Deeds 
containing a certification as to having met the then existing regulations in effect.” 

 
Sometimes, lots are created that are not reviewed for compliance with, nor meet the requirements 
of the UDO.   These lots are typically created by a court order or by deed.  Lots created that do 
not meet the standards of the ordinances at the time of its creation are not considered to be a 
“lot of record”.  In order to ensure proper implementation of the UDO, Currituck County, pursuant 
to the North Carolina General Statutes, does not issue any building permits to lots not considered 
to be a “lot of record”. 

BOA 13-03 Coutler - Variance
Case Analysis
Page 1 of 13



 

Coulter Request 
Mr. Coulter owns a lot in the off-road area of the Outer Banks; zoned Single-Family Residential-
Outer Banks Remote (SFR).  The lot was created in 1977 when a larger piece of property was 
divided by a court order, in accordance with a will, to 11 heirs.  At that time, Currituck County 
had both a zoning and subdivision ordinance.  The lot in question did not meet all of the 
applicable requirements of the subdivision ordinance.  Therefore the lot is not considered to be a 
“lot of record” and a building permit can not be issued for any development proposed on it.  
 
Mr. Coulter is seeking a variance from the standards of the UDO that are preventing the lot from 
being approved through the subdivision process and thus being considered a “lot of record”. 
Those standards involve lot size, lot width, and lot access.  Specifically: 
 
Chapter 3: Zoning Districts - Section 3.4.4.F Dimensional Standards 
Requires lots in the SFR district to have a minimum lot area of 120,000 square feet and a 
minimum width of 125 feet.  According to a survey prepared by Coastal Engineering & 
Surveying, Inc. in 2006, the lot has an area of 20,003 square feet and a width of 118.32 feet.  
 

 
 
Chapter 10: Definitions and Measurement – Section 10.3.4.B.6: Lot Access 
Requires lots to abut a public or private right-of-way.  The lot does not abut a right-of-way.  The 
plat creating the lot in 1977 illustrates a 15 foot easement for access.  
 

“(6)  Lot Access 
(a)  No lot shall be established which does not abut a public or private right-of-way 
 as permitted in these regulations unless the parent parcel has been planned for 
 development in which the resulting lots are provided direct access to a public or 
 private right-of-way across common property perpetually maintained for such 
 purposes. Examples include townhome, condominium, or multi-family 
 developments, and office park and shopping center developments. 

 (b)  Every lot shall be configured so as to maintain at least 20 feet for 
ingress/egress of emergency service vehicles.” 

 
In 2007, Mr. Coulter requested a variance from lot size, lot width, and right-of-way requirements 
for the same lot in question.  The Board of Adjustment denied the request, finding that the 
hardship was shared by the applicant and neighbors, therefore not meeting the criteria necessary 
to grant a variance.  

BOA 13-03 Coutler - Variance
Case Analysis
Page 2 of 13



 

 
Variance Criteria  
The purpose of a variance is to allow certain deviations from the dimensional standards of the 
UDO (such as height, yard setback, lot coverage, or similar numerical standards) when the 
landowner demonstrates that, owing to special circumstances or conditions beyond the 
landowner’s control (such as topographical conditions, narrowness, shallowness, or shape of a 
specific parcel of land), a literal application of the standards would result in undue and unique 
hardship to the landowner and the deviation would not be contrary to the public interest. 
 
A variance shall be approved on a finding the applicant demonstrates all of the following 
standards are met: 
 
(1)  Strict compliance with the provisions of the Ordinance results in no reasonable use of the 
 land; 
(2)  The alleged hardship is suffered by the applicant as a result of the application of this 
 Ordinance; 
(3)  The hardship relates to the applicant's land, rather than personal circumstances; 
(4)  The hardship is unique, or nearly so, rather than one shared by many surrounding 
 properties; 
(5)  The hardship is not the result of the applicant's own actions; and 
(6)  The variance will neither result in the extension of a nonconformity nor authorize the 
 initiation of a nonconforming use of land. 
 
Staff Recommendation  
Below are staff’s suggested findings and recommendation. 
 
(1)  Strict compliance with the provisions of the Ordinance results in no reasonable use of the 
 land; 

Suggested finding: Strict compliance with the provisions of the Ordinance does result in no 
reasonable use of the land as a building permit can not be issued.  
 

(2)  The alleged hardship is suffered by the applicant as a result of the application of this 
 Ordinance; 

Suggested finding: The alleged hardship is suffered by the applicant is a result of the 
application of this Ordinance.  The UDO considers this lot not be a “lot or record” and 
therefore can not be issued a building permit.  

 
(3)  The hardship relates to the applicant's land, rather than personal circumstances; 

Suggested finding: The hardship does relate to the applicant’s land, specifically its size, 
width, and access.  

 
(4)  The hardship is unique, or nearly so, rather than one shared by many surrounding 
 properties; 

Suggested finding: The hardship is not unique, or nearly so, rather than one shard by many 
surrounding properties.  All lots in the county not considered to be a “lot of record” can be 
denied building permits pursuant to North Carolina General Statute §153A-334, including 
the other adjacent vacant lots created by the court order with the lot in question in 1977. 

 
(5)  The hardship is not the result of the applicant's own actions; and 

Suggested finding:  The hardship is the result of the applicant’s own actions.  The property 
was divided by court order when the county had a zoning and subdivision ordinance 

BOA 13-03 Coutler - Variance
Case Analysis
Page 3 of 13



 

regulating the property.  The original property could have been legally subdivided through 
the subdivision process. 

 
(6)  The variance will neither result in the extension of a nonconformity nor authorize the 
 initiation of a nonconforming use of land. 

Suggested finding: The variance will not result in the extension of a nonconformity nor 
authorize the initiation of a nonconforming use of land.  The applicant is requesting relief 
from the existing nonconformities of the lot and will not increase any of the existing 
nonconformities.  
 

Staff is recommending denial of this request as it does not meet all six criteria needed to be 
granted.  
 
 
 
The County submits the following attachments:  

1. Attachment 1:  Variance application submitted December 7, 2012. 
2. Attachment 2:  Sections 3.4.4: SFR District and 10.3.4.B.6: Lot Access of the UDO.  
3. Attachment 3:  Plat Cabinet A, Page 106, recorded in the Currituck County Registered of  

  Deeds office.  
4. Attachment 4: Survey prepared by Coastal Engineering & Surveying, Inc. on February 3,  

  2006.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

BOA 13-03 Coutler - Variance
Case Analysis
Page 4 of 13



  Variance Application 
Page 3 of 8 

   

 
 

 
Variance 

 Application  
 
 

 
Contact Information 

APPLICANT:   PROPERTY OWNER: 
Name: Richard M. Coultier  Name:       
Address:  Corolla, NC                               Address:       

         

Telephone: 252-619-0443                                    Telephone:            

Fax Number:        Fax Number:         

E-Mail Address:       nccolt45@hotmail.com              E-Mail Address:       
 
LEGAL RELATIONSHIP OF APPLICANT TO PROPERTY OWNER:   Same    ______ 
 
Property Information 
 
Physical Street Address:   None  

Location: Currituck County, RO-2 Zoning 

Parcel Identification Number:  101-B-000-0008-0000       

Request 
 
I,  Richard M Coultier , hereby request a variance from Section(s) 10.3.3.B.6 Lot Access 1971 Ordinance 

(lot standards) 

Section 3.4.4.F Dimensional Standards 
Establishes minimum lot area and minimum lot width for the SFR district. 
  
Section 10.3.4.6 Lot Access 
Requires lots to be established on a public or private right-of-way. 
   
 

Provide a narrative of why the variance is needed and what circumstances have lead to the need for a 

variance: 

The Variance is needed in order to get a building permit.  Previously, several years when the attempt was 

made to obtain a variance, the primary reason  for denial focused around the inability to get emergency 

vehicles around a 15’ easement.   This is no longer the case since the Carova Beach Fire and Rescue has 

purchased the adjacent property, and recognizes that they may simply access the property requesting 

OFFICIAL USE ONLY: 
  Case Number:      
  Date Filed:    
  Gate Keeper:    
  Amount Paid:    

BOA 13-03 Coutler - Variance
Attachment 1 - Application
Page 5 of 13



  Variance Application 
Page 4 of 8 

   

the variance by simply driving through their own property.   In addition, the lot met the minimum lot size 

requirement, but simply did not have an adequate length of 200’ only having 175’, while the county 

accepted the subdivision plat for recording in 1977, has collected taxes on the lot, and that the lot has 

been bought and sold several times since 1977.        

     

 
 
 
Relevant Factors for Issuance of a Variance 
 

A variance may be granted by the Board of Adjustment if it concludes that strict enforcement of the 
ordinance would result in practical difficulties or unnecessary hardships for the applicant and that, by 
granting the variance, the spirit of the ordinance will be observed, public safety and welfare secured, 
and substantial justice done.  It may reach these conclusions if it makes detailed written findings that: 
 
A. Strict compliance with the provisions of the Ordinance results in no reasonable use of the land.  (It is 

not sufficient that failure to grant the variance simply makes the property less valuable.  Ordinarily some physical problem 
preventing development of the property in an authorized manner should be shown).   
There is no other use          

   

 
B. The alleged hardship is suffered by the applicant as a result of the application of the Ordinance, 

and the same hardship is not shared by neighbors or the general public. (Variances can not be granted if 
the hardship is the result of restrictions other than those of the ordinance; restrictive covenants are an example. Also, if other 
property owners in the area suffer from the same hardship then the proper action would be to seek relief through an 
amendment to the ordinance). 
 The hardship is unique to this parcel, since the new ordinance language would allow for a shared 

Driveway or use between two property owners; in this case, the adjacent property owner is the Fire and 

Rescue Dept.  A condition stating that the Fire and Rescue dept. will use their own property to access the 

Property owned by applicant would be a unique situation not shared by anyone else, nor is anyone 

adjacent sharing the same circumstances.        

            

            

             

 

C. The hardship is unique, or nearly so, rather than personal circumstances.  (Hardships suffered by the 
applicant should relate to the applicant’s land and not result from the ordinance regulations). 
           This 

Hardship is not related to personal circumstances.       

            

            

   

 
D. The hardship is unique, or nearly so, rather than one shared by many surrounding properties.  

(Hardships suffered by the applicant in common with neighbors does not justify a variance, the proper remedy is not a 
variance, but rather an amendment of the ordinance.  Courts have held that a board’s granting a variance based on such 
factors amounts to an attempted usurpation of legislative power. The other property owners nearby are not 
adjacent to the new Fire and Rescue site, and do not share this unique circumstance.   
            
            
    

BOA 13-03 Coutler - Variance
Attachment 1 - Application
Page 6 of 13



  Variance Application 
Page 5 of 8 

   

 
E. The hardship is not the result of the applicant’s own actions.  (Where a property owner has either knowingly 

or unknowingly violated the ordinance by erecting a forbidden structure, he/she cannot cite expenses as a hardship, 
otherwise no one would ever comply with the ordinance.  Similarly, when a person buys property and certain restrictions 
exist, he/she cannot be said to suffer hardship if those restrictions are enforced; such hardship would be self imposed). 
 The hardship is not the result of the applicant.  Currituck County had previously granted 3 different 

Building permits on adjacent properties, (On tract 7) with structures built on two of the three permitted 

areas. The first permit was issued in 1979, and the other two were issued in 1980 and a later year 

unknown.             

            

   _______ 

 
 

F. The variance will neither result in the extension of a nonconformity nor authorize the initiation of a 
nonconforming use of land. (State facts and arguments to show that the variance requested represents the least 
possible deviation from the letter of the ordinance that will allow a reasonable use of the land and that the use of the 
property, if the variance is granted will not create a new nonconformity).  
            

 The variance application is for a residential use, and the variance if granted will not create a new 

Non conformity.  Of the original 10 divisions of the Lewark tract, only two are “locked” inside and thus 

need some relief from the Court ordered division from 1977.   The variance requested here is the only 

viable way to gain any use of the land, and is the minimum requirements specified by the UDO for obtaining 

residential usage is kept to the absolute minimum within the stated request.    

            

             

 
I, the undersigned, do certify that all of the information presented in this application is accurate to the 
best of my knowledge, information, and belief.   
 
Further, I hereby authorize county officials to enter my property for purposes of determining zoning 
compliance.  All information submitted and required as part of this application process shall become 
public record. 
 
            ______ 
Property Owner(s)/Applicant*        Date 
   
*NOTE:  Form must be signed by the owner(s) of record, contract purchaser(s), or other person(s) having a 
recognized property interest.  If there are multiple property owners/applicants a signature is required for 
each. 

  

Owner Verification 
 
If the person who is requesting the Board of Adjustment to take action on a particular piece of 
property is not the owner of the property, or under contract to purchase, then the actual owner of the 
land must complete this section.  If the owner is the appellant/application please do not complete this 
section. 
 
Dear Sir or Madame: 
 
I am the owner of the property located at          
            ______. 
I hereby authorize             
to appear with my consent before the Board of Adjustment in order to request a variance at the 

BOA 13-03 Coutler - Variance
Attachment 1 - Application
Page 7 of 13



BO
A

 13-03 C
outler - V

ariance
A

ttachm
ent 1 - A

pplication
Page 8 of 13



Chapter 3: Zoning Districts  
 SECTION 3.4: RESIDENTIAL BASE ZONING DISTRICTS 
 Subsection 3.4.4: Single-Family Residential-Outer Banks Remote (SFR) District 
 

 
CCUURRRRIITTUUCCKK  CCOOUUNNTTYY,,  NNCC  UUNNIIFFIIEEDD  DDEEVVEELLOOPPMMEENNTT  OORRDDIINNAANNCCEE  3.16 

3.4.4. Single-Family Residential-Outer Banks Remote (SFR) District 

SSSFFFRRR   
SSS III NNN GGG LLL EEE --- FFF AAA MMM III LLL YYY    
RRR EEE SSS III DDD EEE NNN TTT III AAA LLL    
OOO UUU TTT EEE RRR    BBB AAA NNN KKK SSS    
RRR EEE MMM OOO TTT EEE    

A.  DISTRICT PURPOSE B.  LOT PATTERNS 

The Single-Family Residential-Outer Banks Remote (SFR) district is established to accommodate 
very low density residential development on the portion of the outer banks north of Currituck 
Milepost 13.  The district is intended to accommodate limited amounts of development in a manner 
that preserves sensitive natural resources, protects wildlife habitat, recognizes the inherent 
limitations on development due to the lack of infrastructure, and seeks to minimize damage from 
flooding and catastrophic weather events.  The district accommodates single-family detached homes 
on lots platted prior to April 2, 1989, even in cases where the lot does not meet the minimum lot 
area requirement for the district.  All development in the district is subject to stormwater 
management, dune and maritime forest protection, and special exterior lighting limitations.  Public 
safety and utility uses are allowed, while commercial, office, and industrial uses are prohibited. 

C.  LOT CONFIGURATION 
 

Vacant nonconforming lots in the SFR 
district shall comply with Section 8.4.3, 
Development on Vacant Nonconforming 
Lots. 

BOA 13-03 Coutler - Variance
Attachment 2 - UDO
Page 9 of 13



Chapter 3: Zoning Districts  
 SECTION 3.4: RESIDENTIAL BASE ZONING DISTRICTS 
 Subsection 3.4.4: Single-Family Residential-Outer Banks Remote (SFR) District 
 

 
CCUURRRRIITTUUCCKK  CCOOUUNNTTYY,,  NNCC  UUNNIIFFIIEEDD  DDEEVVEELLOOPPMMEENNTT  OORRDDIINNAANNCCEE  3.17 

D.  TYPICAL BUILDING FORMS 

  

E.  BUILDING CONFIGURATION 
 

F.  DIMENSIONAL STANDARDS 
Max. Gross Density (du/ac) N/A Min. Side Setback (ft) 10 4
Max. FAR (%) N/A Min. Rear Setback (ft) [4] 25 5
Min. Lot Area (sq ft) [1] 120,000 Min. Agricultural Setback (ft) [6] N/A 

Max. Lot Area (sq ft) N/A Min. Accessory Use Setback (ft) [5] 10 6
Min. Lot Width, Interior Lot (ft) 125 1 Min. Driveway/Parking Setback (ft) N/A 

Min Lot Width, Corner Lot (ft) 125 Min. Fill Setback from all Lot Lines (ft) N/A 

Max. Lot Depth (ft) [2] Min. Wetland/Riparian Buffer (ft) [6] 50 7
Max. Lot Coverage (%) 30 [3] Max. Building Height (ft) 35 8
Min. Front Setback (ft)  20 2 Min. Spacing Between Buildings (ft) 10 9
Min. Corner Side Setback (ft)  20 3 Min. Public Vehicular Accessway Width (ft) 20 0
Min. Major Arterial Street Setback (ft) N/A   

[1] Applies to family subdivision lots 
[2] Lot depth shall not exceed seven times the lot width on beachfront lots 
[3] 35% for platted lots of 19,000 sf in area or less 
[4] Beachfront lots are also subject to CAMA Small Structure Setback Line requirements 
[5] Structures prohibited in front of principal building when principal building is less than 300 feet from accessway 
[6] Applied to major subdivisions platted after January 1, 2013 and site plans on lots 10 acres in area and greater 

BOA 13-03 Coutler - Variance
Attachment 2 - UDO
Page 10 of 13



Chapter 10: Definitions and Measurement  
 SECTION 10.3: RULES OF MEASUREMENT 
 Subsection 10.3.4: Required Setbacks 
 

 
CCUURRRRIITTUUCCKK  CCOOUUNNTTYY,,  NNCC  UUNNIIFFIIEEDD  DDEEVVEELLOOPPMMEENNTT  OORRDDIINNAANNCCEE  10.8 

((44))  Family Subdivision Lots 

((aa))  Family subdivision lots shall maintain a minimum lot area of 40,000 
square feet, regardless of the minimum requirements for the zoning 
district (except in the SFR district, where district requirements apply). 

((bb))  Family subdivision lots are not required to front onto a public or 
private street. 

((55))  Flag Lots 

((aa))  Flag lots are prohibited in cases where they would result in an 
increased number of lots accessing collector or arterial streets. 

((bb))  In no instance shall more than five percent of the lots in a new 
subdivision be configured as flag lots. 

((66))  Lot Access  

((aa))  No lot shall be established which does not abut a public or private 
right-of-way as permitted in these regulations unless the parent parcel 
has been planned for development in which the resulting lots are 
provided direct access to a public or private right-of-way across 
common property perpetually maintained for such purposes.  
Examples include townhome, condominium, or multi-family 
developments, and office park and shopping center developments.   

((bb))  Every lot shall be configured so as to maintain at least 20 feet for 
ingress/egress of emergency service vehicles. 

((77))  Lot Boundaries 

((aa))  Lot boundaries shall be formed to coincide with natural or man-made 
drainage ways, to the maximum extent practicable, to avoid disruption 
of established drainage patterns. 

((bb))  Lot lines shall be at, or near, right angles or radial to streets. 

((cc))  Whenever a single lot is located within two or more different zoning 
districts, each portion of that lot shall be subject to all the regulations 
applicable to the district in which it is located. 

((88))  Lot Coverage in Estuarine Shoreline Areas of Environmental 
Concern 
Lot coverage within estuarine shoreline areas of environmental concern (lands 
within 75 feet of the normal or mean high water level of an estuary) shall be 
limited to a maximum of 30 percent, regardless of the type of building or 
paving. 

10.3.4. Required Setbacks 

AA..  Definitions/Measurement 

((11))  Accessory Use Setback 
The minimum required distance between a side or rear lot line and the closest 
portion of an accessory structure or accessory use area (see Figure10.3.4.A, 
Required Setbacks).  Accessory structures or uses are not permitted closer to 
a street than a principal building. 

BOA 13-03 Coutler - Variance
Attachment 2 - UDO
Page 11 of 13



BO
A

 1
3-

03
 C

ou
tle

r 
- 

V
ar

ia
nc

e
A

tta
ch

m
en

t 3
 -

 P
la

t C
ab

in
et

 A
, P

ag
e 

10
6

Pa
ge

 1
2 

of
 1

3



BOA 13-03 Coutler - Variance
Attachment 4 - Survey

Page 13 of 13


	Agenda
	Board of Adjustment November 8, 2012 Meeting Minutes
	Case Analysis - BOA 13-01
	Maps
	Review Process

	Case Anaysis - BOA 13-02
	Maps
	Application
	Conditional Use Permit

	UDO Variance PB 13-03
	Application




